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Mr. Michael Winka, Director  
Office of Clean Energy 
N.J. Board of Public Utilities 
44 South Clinton Avenue 
Post Office Box 350 
Trenton, NJ 08625-0350 
 
Re: Offshore Wind Rebate Program for the Installation of Meteorological Towers and 

the request by Garden State Offshore Energy for an Eligibility Determination 
 
 
Dear Mr. Winka, 
 
The Office of Clean Energy (OCE) has asked that the New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) provide a response concerning the equivalency of the proposal submitted by 
Garden State Offshore Energy (GSOE) for the Meteorological (MET) tower rebate.  We 
understand that GSOE is proposing to site a buoy system rather than a fixed MET tower to 
collect wind resource and environmental monitoring data. 
 
Several DEP programs met with GSOE on July 20, 2010 to learn more about the proposal.  It is 
our understanding that the following data will be collected in Phase I using this new spar buoy 
system: 
 

• LIDAR data 
• Acoustic monitoring for birds and bats (separate systems) 
• Acoustic monitoring for marine mammals (subsurface) 
• Current profiler – ADCP instrument 
• Water measurements (e.g., temperature, salinity, etc.)



At the meeting, GSOE acknowledged the importance of radar data for birds and indicated they 
are investigating whether it can be incorporated into the Phase I surveys. If not, it will be 
designed into the Phase II spar buoy, or a MET tower will be constructed.  They also indicated 
the urgency to start collecting wind resource data and are committed to collecting needed 
additional radar data in Phase II.   
 
There are two primary relevant stipulations in the BPU MET Tower rebate program that involve 
DEP.  These include: 
 

• DEP and/or DEP’s contactors will be provided access to the station to collect data and/or 
deploy instruments for data collection based on a mutual agreement to be executed by the 
parties based on good faith negotiations; 

• The rebate applicant shall coordinate with DEP and MMS concerning wind farm pre-
construction ecological/environmental studies conducted from the meteorological tower 
to insure the studies meet the needs of DEP and MMS for wind farm permitting/leasing, 
and to expedite and standardize the data collection process. 

 
Based on further internal discussion, the DEP made the following decisions.  At this time, DEP 
does not plan on needing access to the original MET station or planned buoy for data collection 
and/or the deployment of instruments.  Therefore, this proposal meets the requirement of this 
stipulation.  Concerning the second stipulation, DEP agrees that the Phase I data collection effort 
generally meets this requirement and can move forward, with one caveat.  This latter 
‘equivalency’ is acceptable based on GSOE’s planned and appropriate Phase II data being 
collected to fill in data gaps required by Federal and State agencies (e.g., offshore radar) prior to 
construction of a renewable energy wind farm.   
 
Please feel free to contact me at 609-984-6070 if you have any questions or need additional 
information. 
 
       Sincerely yours,  
 
 
 
       Gary A. Buchanan, Ph.D. 

Manager 
 
c:  Michele Siekerka, DEP 
 Will Waskes, MMS 

Robert Gibbs, PSEG/GSOE 
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Mr. Michael Winka, Director  
Office of Clean Energy 
N.J. Board of Public Utilities 
44 South Clinton Avenue 
Post Office Box 350 
Trenton, NJ 08625-0350 
 
Re: Offshore Wind Rebate Program for the Installation of Meteorological Towers and 

the request by Fishermen’s Energy for an Eligibility Determination 
 
 
Dear Mr. Winka, 
 
The Office of Clean Energy (OCE) has asked that the New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) provide a response concerning the equivalency of the proposal submitted by 
Fishermen’s Energy for the Meteorological (MET) tower rebate.  We understand that 
Fishermen’s Energy is proposing to site a buoy system and other land-based equipment rather 
than a fixed MET tower to collect wind resource and environmental monitoring data. 
 
Several DEP programs met with Fishermen’s Energy on July 20, 2010 to learn more about the 
proposal.  It is our understanding that the following data will be collected using this new buoy 
system: 
 

• LIDAR data – Land- and buoy-based 
• Acoustic monitoring for birds and bats (separate systems) 
• Acoustic monitoring for marine mammals (subsurface) 
• Current profiler – ADCP instrument 
• Vessel surveys for biological resources (e.g., birds, marine mammals & turtles) 

 
One concern expressed by DEP was the lack of radar for bird and bat detections in the lease area.  
Fishermen’s Energy acknowledged they were examining options for collecting additional data 
including a low voltage radar system and collaboration with other wind developers. They also 
indicated they would consider collecting radar data at a later point.  They indicated that due to 
scheduling and financial concerns they would need to wait until an MMS lease was issued prior 
to performing these additional surveys, and did acknowledge the need to resolve any data gaps.  
They also indicated the need to start collecting wind resource data.   



There are two primary relevant stipulations in the BPU MET Tower rebate program that involve 
DEP.  These include: 
 

• DEP and/or DEP’s contactors will be provided access to the station to collect data and/or 
deploy instruments for data collection based on a mutual agreement to be executed by the 
parties based on good faith negotiations; 

• The rebate applicant shall coordinate with DEP and MMS concerning wind farm pre-
construction ecological/environmental studies conducted from the meteorological tower 
to insure the studies meet the needs of DEP and MMS for wind farm permitting/leasing, 
and to expedite and standardize the data collection process. 

 
Based on further internal discussion, the DEP made the following decisions.  At this time, DEP 
does not plan on needing access to the original MET station or planned buoy for data collection 
and/or the deployment of instruments.  Therefore, this proposal meets the requirement of this 
stipulation.  Concerning the second stipulation, DEP agrees that the initial data collection effort 
generally meets this requirement and can move forward, with one caveat.  Based on discussions 
with Fishermen’s Energy this latter ‘equivalency’ is acceptable based on the planned and 
appropriate data being collected later to fill in any data gaps identified and required by Federal 
and State agencies (e.g., offshore radar) prior to construction of a renewable energy wind farm.   
 
Please feel free to contact me at 609-984-6070 if you have any questions or need additional 
information. 
 
       Sincerely Yours,  
 
 
 
       Gary A. Buchanan, Ph.D. 

Manager 
 
c:  Michele Siekerka, DEP 

Will Waskes, MMS 
 Dan Cohen, FE 
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provide excess physical space and renewable electric power to accommodate other 
sensors and devices which may be desired by other groups or agencies. 
 
As presently designed, the proposed program will provide data sets of the following 
parameters: 
 

• Vertical profiles of wind speed and direction 
• Air temperature and barometric pressure 
• Atmospheric visibility 
• Ocean current velocity and direction profiles 
• Ocean wave height, period and direction 
• Sea water temperature 
• Marine mammal presence 
• Avian presence 
• Bat presence 

 
Permit authorizations for the installation of these monitoring systems will be applied for 
and obtained through the US Army Corps of Engineers (Nationwide permits 5 & 6) and 
the US Coast Guard (Private Aids to Navigation). Public Notices to Mariners advising of 
new buoy installations will be disseminated by the USCG. 
 
We request that the BOEMRE evaluate the attached program description and reply with 
concurrence that this approach is in accordance with the requirements of the interim 
lease.  
 
We are available to discuss any aspects of this program and are willing to consider any 
enhancements which the agency deems necessary to meet the interim lease program 
requirements. Should you have any questions, please contact Mike Madia (T: 
732.274.1887 or M: 917.545.7693) or myself. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Stephen P. O’Malley 
Project Engineering Manager  
Fishermen’s Energy, LLC 
M: +1.302.222.6832 
















